BOARD MINUTES
MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
MAY 18, 2017

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Mississippi State Board of Medical
Licensure was held on Thursday, May 18, 2017, in the Board Room of the Office of
the Board located at 1867 Crane Ridge Drive, Jackson, Mississippi.

THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE PRESENT:

Charles D. Miles, M.D., West Point, President

Virginia M. Crawford, M.D., Hattiesburg, Vice President
Claude D. Brunson, M.D., Jackson, Secretary

S. Randall Easterling, M.D., Vicksburg

C. Kenneth Lippincott, M.D., Tupelo

William S. Mayo, D.O., Oxford

David W. McClendon, Jr., M.D., Ocean Springs
Michelle Y. Owens, M.D., Jackson

J. Ann Rea, M.D., Summit

ALSO PRESENT:

John K. Hall, M.D., J.D., Director

Stan T. Ingram, Complaint Counsel for the Board

Ellen O’Neal, Special Assistant Attorney General

Rhonda Freeman, Bureau Director, Licensure Division
Leslie Ross, Investigations Supervisor

Jonathan Dalton, Staff Officer, Investigative Division
Frances Catrrillo, Staff Officer, Investigative Division
Charles Thomas, Yazoo City, Consumer Health Committee
Maj Gen (Ret) Erik Hearon, Consumer Health Committee
Wesley Breland, Hattiesburg, Consumer Health Committee

The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Dr. Miles, President. The
invocation was given by Dr. Easterling and the pledge was led by Dr. Lippincott. Dr.
Miles extended a welcome to all visitors present at the meeting.

Dr. Miles opened the floor for public comments but there were none.

The Board recommended that Catapult Health have three Medical Directors to oversee
Nurse Practitioners and to submit that plan in writing to the Board.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT MARCH 01, 2017, THRU APRIL 30, 2017

a. Approval of certifications to other entities
340 licenses were certified to other entities.
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b. Approval of licenses issued
141 licenses were issued.

c. PA protocols
21 PA protocols were approved

Following a brief discussion and several questions changes were noted.
d. Proposed Consent Orders for approval

Mohammad Ahmad-Sabry, M.D.
William Scott Campbell, Jr., M.D.
Dee L’Archeveque, M.D.
Thomas Joseph Seglio, M.D.
Lucius Lampton, M.D.

abrwnpE

A motion was made by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Rea, and carried to accept
all the Consent Orders with the exception of the consent order for Lucius Lampton,
M.D., pending his arrival.

Lucius Lampton, M.D., appeared with counsel, Katie Gilchrist. Ms. Gilchrist
introduced herself to the Board and proceeded to provide the Board with background
history leading to Dr. Lampton’s appearance. Ms. Gilchrist explained that on April 4,
2017, a visit from board Investigators found pre-signed prescriptions for a controlled
substance. Ms. Gilchrist explained that this was an error in judgement on the part of Dr.
Lampton and will never happen again. A proposed Consent Order was presented to the
Board for approval.

A motion was made by Dr. Easterling, seconded by Dr. Owen to go into
Executive Session to consider disciplinary action against Licensee.

Upon a motion by Dr. Mayo, seconded by Dr. Owens and carried the Executive
Committee came out of Executive Session at which time Dr. Miles asked Dr. Brunson to
report on its decision. Dr. Brunson advised that the Board accepts the proposed
Consent Order with the following exceptions; 1) Licensee is suspended for 6 months
with a one year stay allowing completion of required courses, 2) Item #2 “Practice
Monitoring” in the Consent Order will be stricken. Licensee will be presented with an
amended Consent Order for his consideration.

e. Investigative Report March 1, 2017 to April 30, 2017
Ms. Ross reported:

Number of complaints received: 53
Number of cases closed: 180*
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Total number of open cases: 211

Number of complaints sent to licensee for response: 11

Number of FSMB reports re licensees: 14

Number of NPDB reports re licensees: 9

Recidivism appearances: (counted as a previous EC visit and/ or appearance

before the Board)

-licensees w/ 2 appearances: 1

-licensees w/ 3 appearances: 1

-licensees w/ 4 appearances: 1

Number of disciplinary actions taken by the Board: 8

Consent Orders: 7 (approved at March Board meeting)

Surrenders: 0

Suspensions: 1 (hearing in March)

Temporary Action: 0

* Continuation from updating the Investigative case log from earlier this year.
This process has been completed and the log is now current. *

f. Data Use Update
1. Conner Reeves / Request by MSMA is approved
2. Ron Cossman / Request from MSU / Physician Workforce is approved.
3. Mississippi State Department of Health
Office of Rural Health and Primary Care / Request is approved.
A motion was made by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Rea and carried to
approve the Data Use Agreement for the Mississippi State Department of Health.

g. Interstate Medical Licensure Compact Update

Dr. Hall briefly discussed the issuance of the first medical license through the
Interstate Medical Licensure Compact. He reported holding three applications for State
of Principle licensure with Mississippi pending FBI approval to do background checks.
REPORTS FROM COMMITEES

Scope of Practice - Dr. Easterling (Chair), Dr. Brunson, Dr. Miles, Dr. Rea, Dr.
Owens, Mr. Thomas

Dr. Easterling advised the committee’s discussion of proposed Physician
Assistant Guidelines for protocols and will submit additional suggestions to the PA
advisory Committee.

Professionals Health Program - Dr. Crawford (Chair), Dr. Lippincott, Dr.
McClendon, Dr. Rea

Dr. Crawford advised there was no new information to report.
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Rules, Regulation & Legislative - Dr. Mayo (Chair), Dr. Easterling, Dr. Miles, Dr.
McClendon, Dr. Owens, Mr. Breland

Dr. Mayo introduced a copy of the proposed revised Acupuncture Rule due to the
change in Statute regarding the practice of Acupuncture and will be posted for public
comment when approved.

A motion was made by Dr. Crawford and seconded by Dr. Owen and carried to
approve the proposed revised Acupuncture Rule.

Dr. Easterling also reported that the proposed amendments to Part 2640 of the
Rules, “Pertaining to the Prescribing, Administering and Dispensing of Medication”,
which was approved by the Board, will be placed on hold before final adoption pending
receipt of the Governor’s Taskforce recommendations.

Telemedicine | Interstate Licensure Compact - Dr. Brunson (Chair), Dr. Crawford,
Dr. Hall, Ms. Freeman, Maj Gen (Retired) Hearon

Dr. Brunson advised there was no new information to add to Dr. Hall's earlier
report on the Interstate Licensure Compact. For informational purposes Dr. Brunson
discussed receiving a protocol from a Physician to set up a Telemedicine program and
reported this practice was consistent with the Telemedicine Rule.

Licensees Education and Communication - Dr. Easterling (Chair), Dr. Brunson,
Dr. Crawford, Dr. Rea, Ms. Freeman

Dr. Easterling advised there was no new information to report.

Physician Assistant Advisory Task Force - Dr. Crawford (Chair), Robert Phil pot,
Jr., PhD, PA-C Tristen Harris, PA-C Lauren English, Phyllis Johnson, Board of
Nursing, Ms. Freeman, PA-C Leah Calder, PA-C Gavin Nowell

Dr. Crawford advised there was a good discussion regarding guidelines for
physician protocols.

REVIEW OF MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING DATED
MARCH 15, 2017, AND MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING DATED MARCH 15
AND 16, 2017

Upon review of the minutes of the Executive Committee Meeting dated March 15, 2017,
and Minutes of The Board Meeting dated March 15 and 16, 2017, Dr. Crawford moved
for approval of the minutes as submitted. Dr. Mayo seconded the motion and it carried
unanimously.
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REPORT OF MARCH 15, 2017, EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

Dr. Hall briefly discussed the issues/appearances that were discussed by the Executive
Committee on March 15, 2017. Information pertaining to the Executive Committee's
decisions/recommendations is included in the Executive Committee Minutes dated May
17, 2017.

Motion was made by Dr. Mayo, seconded by Dr. Easterling, and carried unanimously to
ratify the decisions/recommendations of the Executive Committee.

Other Business

DISCLOSURE REPORTING — MSMA, CONNER REEVES
Mr. Conner reported he had submitted a formal question to Dr. Hall which was
discussed by telephone and he had nothing else to ask the Board regarding this matter.

DOUGLAS A. TUCKER, M.D., TELEHEALTH PARTNERS PRESENTATION

Dr. Tucker gave a brief overview of a comprehensive alternate service delivery
company model for pain management. He discussed the goals in which one was to
increase the capacity of pain specialists and decrease the burden of opioid prescriptions
in primary care. This company is communicating with to establish relationships with
Medical Boards before delivering services and not requesting approval at this time.

After discussion and questions by the Board, Dr. Tucker was advised to keep in
contact with the Telemedicine Committee of the Board.

BARRY COCKRELL — TELEMEDICINE PROPOSAL

Mr. Cockrell, Attorney representing Forrest General Hospital, Hattiesburg,
Mississippi is requesting a possible modification of the Board’'s Rule, Part 2635 Chapter
5: Practice of Telemedicine, Rule 5.7 Collaborative/Consultative Physician Limited. He
introduced John Nelson, M.D., Medical Director Emergency Room physician at Forrest
General Hospital.

Dr. Nelson discussed with the Board the possibility of modifying the Rule to
include Level Il Emergency Departments. Dr. Easterling recommended for them to
submit proposed changes to the Rules and Regulation Committee of the Board with the
understanding that there is now a State established Tribunal to review all state
agencies’ regulation before final adoption and will take time to process.

RON MARK, M.D., DEER PARK, NY, MISSISSIPPI MEDICAL LICENSE 21388,
REQUEST FOR CONSENT ORDER TO BE LIFTED

RICHARD E. BROWNSTEIN, M.D., CLARKSDALE, MS, MISSISSIPPI MEDICAL
LICENSE NUMBER 15662, REQUEST FOR CONSENT ORDER TO BE LIFTED
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Dr. Hall provided the Board with a brief background and advised that Dr. Mark
and Dr. Brownstein are petitioning the Board to request the lifting of their Consent
Order. Dr. Hall advised the Board that Dr. Mark and Dr. Brownstein had complied with
all of the Consent Order terms and conditions.

Following questions, a motion was made by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr.
Lippincott and carried to grant the requests of Dr. Ron Mark and Dr. Richard
Brownstein. A copy of the Order is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

PERSONAL APPEARANCE BY SCOTT PRECHTER, M.D., PFAFFTOWN, NC,
MISSISSIPPI MEDICAL LICENSE 22575, REQUEST REINSTATEMENT

Dr. Hall introduced Dr. Prechter and provided the Board with a brief background.
Dr. Hall advised the Board Dr. Prechter is appearing to request reinstatement of his
medical license. Dr. Hall also advised the Board that Dr. Prechter has complied with his
Board order, completed all the required courses and was prepared to discuss his
protection plan.

Dr. Prechter addressed the Board and discussed what he had learned from the
courses in regards to prescribing controlled substances and the boundary issues in
prescribing to family members.

Following questions, a motion was made by Dr. Lippincott, seconded by Dr.
Owen, and carried to grant Dr. Prechter’s request to reinstate his Mississippi medical
license. A copy of the Order is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

THE BOARD RECESSED FOR LUNCH AT 11:20 A.M. AND RETURNED AT 12:15 P.M.

HEARING IN THE CASE OF MEISAM H. MOGHBELLI, M.D., CLEVELAND, OH,
MISSISSIPPI MEDICAL LICENSE 20853

Mr. Ingram introduced Dr. Moghbelli and his attorney, Doug Mercier. Mr. Ingram
advised that Dr. Moghbelli had been served a Summons and Affidavit based on several
different charges of the Mississippi Medical Practice Act, following receipt of a notice
from the Hattiesburg clinic reporting Dr. Moghbelli’s termination of employment due to
his unauthorized use of the automated record system to gain access to and obtain
patient personal information without a valid medical reason. Mr. Ingram entered several
exhibits into the record.

Mr. Ingram provided the Board with an opening statement.

Mr. Mercier provided the Board with an opening statement.
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Amanda Baney was called to the witness stand and sworn in by the court
reporter. Mr. Ingram questioned Ms. Baney concerning the circumstances how she met
Dr. Moghbelli and how he contacted her through text messages. Ms. Baney testified
regarding how and when Dr. Moghbilli accessed her private health information, his
contact with her for romantic reasons and that she was not a patient of Dr. Moghbelli,
After Mr. Mercier cross-examined her, several board members questioned Ms. Baney
before she exited the witness stand.

Terri Pierce was called to the witness stand and sworn in by the court reporter.
Ms. Pierce responded that she is the Privacy Officer with Forrest General Hospital. In
response to questions from Mr. Ingram, Ms. Pierce provided a summary of her duties
and responsibilities as a Privacy Officer, including maintaining compliance with the
privacy regulations through auditing and monitoring access to medical records as well
as investigate complaints. Ms. Pierce gave testimony regarding the investigation and
resulting record documenting Dr. Moghbelli's access of the electronic patient record of
Ms. Baney. Ms. Pierce answered questions by the Board members. Mr. Mercier
guestioned Ms. Pierce concerning her testimony before she exited the witness stand.

Dr. Moghbelli was called to the witness stand and sworn in by the court reporter.
In response to questions from Mr. Mercier, Dr. Moghbelli admitted that he had accessed
Ms. Baney’'s confidential electronic medical records. Dr. Moghbelli provided his
personal background and education. Mr. Mercier questioned Dr. Moghbelli concerning
Ms. Baney and accessing her confidential medical records.  Dr. Moghbelli answered
guestions by the Board members and Mr. Ingram. Mr. Mercier questioned Dr. Moghbelli
and asked him to address the Board regarding his actions before he exited the witness
stand.

A motion was made by Dr. Easterling, seconded by Dr. Owens and carried that
the Executive Committee enter into Executive Session to discuss a matter that could
result in adverse action.

Upon a motion by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Mayo and carried the Executive
Committee came out of Executive Session at which time Dr. Miles asked Dr. Brunson to
report on its decision. Dr. Brunson advised that the Board finds Dr. Moghbelli guilty of
Counts I-V. The Board ordered the Licensee to attend courses in ethics, boundaries,
record keeping and HIPAA. Failure to complete within a year will result further
disciplinary action up to and including suspension of his medical license.’

A copy of the Order is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

A verbatim account of this proceeding was recorded by Crista Little, Aspire
Reporting.

THE BOARD RECESSED AT 2:56 P.M. AND RECOVENED AT 3:10 P.M.
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HEARING IN THE CASE OF LON F. ALEXANDER, M.D., HATTIESBURG,
MISSISSIPPI MEDICAL LICENSE NUMBER 10954

Mr. Ingram advised that Bobby Dallas representing Dr. Alexander is presenting a
possible resolution in a Consent Order. Mr. Dallas addressed the Board and advised
that a Consent Order is presented for their consideration and approval in lieu of a
hearing.

After discussion and questions by the Board members, a motion was made by
Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Owens, and carried unanimously to accept the Consent
Order.

A copy of the Order is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

A verbatim account of this proceeding was recorded by Crista Little, Aspire
Reporting.

A motion was made by Dr. Easterling, seconded by Dr. Owens and carried that
the Board into Executive Session to discuss a MPHC matter.

HEARING IN THE CASE OF LAWRENCE STEWART, M.D., MCCOMB, MS
MISSISSIPPI MEDICAL LICENSE 11503

Mr. Ingram introduced Dr. Stewart and his attorney, Doug Mercier. Mr. Ingram
advised that Dr. Stewart had been served a Summons and Affidavit issued on April 3,
2017. Mr. Ingram reviewed the Affidavit charges.

Mr. Ingram entered numerous exhibits into the record, including a copy of Dr.
Stewart’s criminal conviction before the US District Court and provided a copy of the
Federal Regulation for the Board members for Executive Session.

Mr. Mercier provided an opening statement and reviewed the Decision as
handed down by the Federal District Court.

Nancy Smith from McComb, Mississippi was called to the witness stand and
sworn in by the court reporter. Ms. Smith provided a history of her acquaintance with
Dr. Stewart, her personal and professional knowledge of Dr. Stewart and standing in the
community. After her testimony she exited the witness stand.

Craig Haskins from McComb, Mississippi was called to the witness stand and
sworn in by the court reporter. Mr. Haskins provided a history of his acquaintance with
Dr. Stewatrt, his personal and knowledge of Dr. Stewart and standing in the community.
After his testimony he exited the witness stand.
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Dr. James Boothe, Radiologist, from McComb, Mississippi was called to the
witness stand and sworn in by the court reporter. Dr. Boothe provided a history of his
knowledge of Dr. Stewart, both personally and professionally, as well as his personal
knowledge of Dr. Stewart’s character. Dr. Boothe completed his testimony exited the
witness stand.

Dr. Lawrence Stewart was called to the witness stand and sworn in by the court
reporter. Mr. Mercier asked Dr. Stewart to provide to the Board his background history
and to review his Federal criminal charges and sentencing. Mr. Ingram questioned Dr.
Stewart about the Federal District Court Conviction Order. Mr. Ingram questioned Dr.
Stewart concerning his testimony. Several board members questioned Dr. Stewart
before he exited the witness stand.

A motion was made by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Brunson and carried that
the Executive Committee enter into Executive Session to discuss a matter that could
result in adverse action.

Upon a motion by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Owens and carried the
Executive Committee came out of Executive Session at which time Dr. Miles asked Dr.
Brunson to report on its decision. Dr. Brunson advised that the Board finds Licensee
guilty of all Counts. Therefore, the Board ordered that 1) Licensee take courses in
ethics, boundaries and prescribing; 2) License is suspended with the suspension stayed
for one (1) year, to allow time to complete courses; 3) License is automatically
reinstated upon proof of completion of courses; 4) Licensee to maintain advocacy with
the Mississippi Professionals Health Program for the life of his medical license.

A copy of the Order is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

A verbatim account of this proceeding was recorded by Crista Little, Aspire
Reporting.

HEARING IN THE CASE OF THOMAS E. STURDAVANT, M.D., BILOXI, MS
MISSISSIPPI MEDICAL LICENSE 16798

The Board had received a written request from attorney, Bobby Dallas for a
continuance until the July Board meeting. Motion was made by Dr. Crawford, seconded
by Dr. Owens, and carried to accept the Continuance until the July Board meeting. A
motion was made by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Owens, and carried unanimously to
grant the Continuance.

PROPOSED REGULATIONS TO BE DISCUSSED CONCERNING TITLE 30:
PART 2635 - PRACTICE OF MEDICINE FILED MARCH 20, 2017

After discussion, motion was made by Dr. Mayo, seconded by Dr. Crawford, and carried
of the Board'’s intent to Final adopt the regulation.
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Copy of the regulation are attached hereto and incorporated by reference.
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m., with the
next two meetings scheduled for Wednesday, July 19, 2017 and for Thursday, July 20,

.

Charles D. Miles, MD
President

Minutes taken and transcribed
by Frances Carrillo

Staff Officer

May 18, 2017



EXECUTIVE SESSION
MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
May 18, 2017

AGENDA ITEM: Hearing in the case of Lucius Lampton, M.D.

In 2 motion made by Dr. Mayo, seconded by Dr. Owens, and carried the Board
accepts the proposed Consent Order with the following exceptions; 1) Licensee is
suspended for 6 months with a one year stay allowing completion of required courses, 2)
Item #2 in the Consent Order will be stricken. Licensee will be presented with an amended
Consent Order for his consideration.

VOTE: FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN ABSENT

Charles D. Miles, M.D.
Claude D. Brunson, M.D.
Virginia M. Crawford, M.D.
S. Randall Easterling, M.D.
C. Ken Lippincott, M.D.
William S. Mayo, D.O.

W. David McClendon, M.D.
Michelle Y. Owens, M.D.

J. Ann Rea, M.D.

XXX XXX XXX

With a motion by Dr. Mayo, seconded by Dr. Crawford, the Board came out of
Executive Session.

Charles D. Miles, M.D.
President



EXECUTIVE SESSION
MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
May 18, 2017

AGENDA ITEM: Hearing in the case of Meisam H. Moghbelli, M.D.

In a motion made by Dr. Easterling, seconded by Dr. Owens, and carried the Board
finds Dr. Moghbelli guilty of Counts I-VV. The Board orders Licensee to attend courses in
ethics, boundaries, record keeping and HIPAA. Failure to complete within a year will result
further disciptinary action up to and including suspension of his medical license.

VOTE: FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN ABSENT

Charles D. Miles, M.D.
Claude D. Brunson, M.D.
Virginta M. Crawford, M.D.
S. Randall Easterling, M.D.
C. Ken Lippincott, M.D.
William S. Mayo, D.O.

W. David McClendon, M.D.
Michelle Y. Owens, M.D.
J. Ann Rea, M.D.

XX XX X X X XX

With a motion by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Mayo, the Board came out of
Executive Session.

Charles D. Miles, M.D.
President



EXECUTIVE SESSION
MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
May 18, 2017

AGENDA ITEM: Hearing in the case of Lawrence Stewart, M.D.

in a motion made by Dr. Easterling, seconded by Dr. Crawford, and carried the
Board finds Licensee guilty of all Counts. Therefore, the Board orders that 1) Licensee
take courses in ethics, boundaries and prescribing; 2) License is suspended with the
suspension stayed for one (1) year to allow time to complete courses; 3) License is
automatically reinstated upon proof of completion of courses; 4) Licensee to maintain
advocacy with the Mississippi Professionals Health Program for the life of his medical
license.

VOTE: FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN ABSENT

Charles D. Miles, M.D.
Claude D. Brunson, M.D.
Virginia M. Crawford, M.D.
S. Randall Easterling, M.D.
C. Ken Lippincott, M.D.
William S. Mayo, D.O.

W. David McClendon, M.D.
Michelle Y. Owens, M.D.
J. Ann Rea, M.D.

XXX X X XX XX

With a motion by Dr. Crawford, seconded by Dr. Owens, the Board came out
of Executive Session.

Charles D. Miles, M.D.
President



BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN LICENSE
OF

MOHAMMAD IBRAHIM AHMAD-SABRY, M.D.

CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, MOHAMMAD IBRAHIM AHMAD-SABRY, M.D., hereinafter
referred to as “Licensee,” is the current holder of Mississippi Medical License No.
19115, said license number expires on June 30, 2017,

WHEREAS, the Investigative Staff of the Mississippi State Board of Medical
Licensure, hereinafter referred to as the “Board,” has conducted an investigation of
Licensee and has in its possession clear and convincing evidence which, if produced
during the course of an evidentiary hearing, would substantiate that Licensee has
violated provisions of the Board’s Administrative Code regarding the prescribing of
controlled substances and is guilty of unprofessional conduct;

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2017, Licensee presented before the Executive
Committee of the Board to discuss the aforementioned investigation. Pursuant to that
appearance, the Board accepted the recommendations of the Executive Committee
wherein Licensee was notified he would be offered a Consent Order to address the

issues discussed at the meeting and regarding said investigation;



WHEREAS, the above conduct, if established before the Board, constitutes
violations of the Mississippi Medical Practice Act, specifically, Subsections {8)(d) and

(13) of § 73-25-29 and § 73-25-83(a) Miss. Code Ann. (1972), as amended, for which

the Board may revoke the medical license of Licgnsee, suspend it for a time deemed

proper by the Board, or take any other action as the Board may deem proper under the

circumstances,;

WHEREAS, it is the desire of Licensee to avoid an evidentiary hearing before the
Board and, in lieu thereof, has agreed to enter into this Consent Order,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, with
consent of Licensee as signified by his joinder herein, enters into this Consent Order
and places the following terms and conditions on Licensee's Mississippi medical
license:

1. Licensee shall immediately cease prescribing controlted substances and take
appropriate and immediate action to identify and transfer care of any patients
receiving prescriptions for controlled substances to another health care provider
in order to provide for continuity of care.

2. Licensee shall submit as soon as possible to an evaiuation of his pain practice at
a Board approved facility/ program such as that offered by The Center for
Personalized Education for Physicians (CPEP). Licensee shail bear all costs
associated with said evaluation.

3._ Licensee shall not return to the practice of pain management until such time as

the Board receives the evaluation of Licensee’s practice of pain management



and approves the recommendations from said facility or program for Licensee's
return to the practice of pain management.

4. LLicensee shall obey all federal, state and focal laws, and all rules and regulations
governing the practice of medicine. Any further acts of misconduct will result in
further action.

5. Licensee expressly agrees he will not seek an appearance before the Board prior
to the comptetion of the terms of this Order and, further, agrees the terms and
conditions of this Order, once executed, may not be appealed.

6. Licensee shall reimburse the Board for all costs incurred in relation to the

pending matter pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., § 73-25-30, said amount not to

exceed $10,000. Licensee shall be advised of the total assessment by separate

written notification, and shall tender to the Board a certified check or money order

made payable to the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, on or before
forty (40) days from the date the assessment is mailed to Licensee via U.S. Malil
to Licensee's current mailing address,

This Consent Order shall be subject to approval by the Board. If the Board fails to
approve this Consent Order, in whole or in part, it shall have no force or effect on the
parties. It is further understood and agreed that the purpose of this Consent Order is to
avoid a hearing before the Board. In this regard, Licensee authorizes the Board to
review and examine any documentary evidence or material conceming the Licensee
prior to or in conjunction with its consideration of this Consent Order. Should this

Consent Order not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that presentation to and



consideration of this Consent Order and other documents and matters pertaining
thereto by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice the Board or any of its
members from participation in any further proceedings.

Should the Board hereafter receive documented evidence of Licensee violating
any of the terms and conditions of this Consent Order, the Board shall have the right,
pursuant to a full evidentiary hearing, to revoke the medical license of Licensee,
suspend it for a time deemed proper by the Board, or take any other action determined
as necessary by the Board.

Further, it is not the intent or purpose of this Order to encourage malpractice
liability as a result of Board action. Therefore, by execution of this Consent Order,
Licensee is not admitting to or acknowiedging any conduct or act of malpractice.

Licensee understands and expressly acknowledges that this Consent Order, if
approved and executed by the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, shall
constitute a public record of the State of Mississippl. Licensee further acknowledges
that the Board shall provide a copy of this Order to, among others, the U.S. Drug
Enforcement Administration, and the Board makes no representation as to action, if
any, which any other agency or jurisdiction may take in response to this Order.

Recognizing his right to notice of charges specified against him, to have such

charges adjudicaled pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., § 73-25-27 (1972), to be

represented therein by legal counsel of his choice, and to a final decision rendered
upen written findings of fact and conclusions of law, MOHAMMAD IBRAHIM AHMAD-

SABRY, M.D., nevertheless, hereby waives his right to notice and a formal adjudication



of charges and authorizes the Board to enter an Order accepting this Consent Order

subject to those terms and conditions listed above.

Executed, this the t 3({}', day of ﬁlﬂ #:/t? ,2017.

MOH‘AWAD IBRAHIM AHMAD-SABRY

M.D.

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, this the Z 25% , déy of

M{,y%f , 2017, by the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure.

CHARLES D. MILES, M.D.
Board President

STAN INGRAM, Esq.
Board Compiaint Counsel

Qoun | for Licensee




BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN'S LICENSE
OF
WILLIAM SCOTT CAMPBELL, JR., M.D.

CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, William Scott Campbell, Jr., M.D., hereinafter referred to as
“Licensee,” is the current holder of License No. 23085, issued January 30, 2014, for
the practice of medicine in the State of Mississippi:

WHEREAS, On July 12, 2016, the Florida Department of Health
administratively charged Licensee with viclating Section 458.331(1)(t)(1), Florida
Statutes (2011), i.e. committing medical malpractice. The charge was based on the
Licensee's misinterpretation of a single CT scan of a two and a half year old
emergency room patient who presented to the hospital after falling down some
stairs. Specifically, the charge alleged that Licensee failed to identify a spinal cord
hematoma on the CT. Licensee later re-reviewed the CT scan, identified the
hematoma and arranged for the patient's return to the hospital where the hematoma
was successfully evacuated. Ultimately the patient was left in a quadriplegic state.
On or about August 4, 2016, Licensee entered into a Settlement Agreement with the
Florida Department of Health, resolving the administrative charge, and the
Settlement Agreement was adopted and enforced by an order from the Florida
Board of Medicine (the “Florida Board”) on December 15, 2016 (the “Florida Board

Order");



WHEREAS, under the terms of Settlement Agreement, Licensee was issued
a Letter of Concern, was fined five thousand five hundred doliars ($5,500), and
agreed to reimburse the Florida Department of Health three thousand one hundred
ninety dollars and ninety-six cents ($3,190.96) for investigative/prosecution costs.
The Settlement Agreement also required Licensee to obtain five (5) hours of
Continuing Medical Education (CME) in the area of pediatric radiology and five (5)
hours of CME in the area of the diagnosis and treatment of hematomas within one
year of the date of the Florida Board Order;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Subsection (9) of §73-25-29, Miss. Code Ann., the

Florida Board Order constitutes another licensing authority’s “other restriction placed
on a license” and is for that reason grounds for which the Mississippi State Board of
Medical Licensure may take action in relation to Licensee’s license as the Board
may deem proper under the circumstances;

WHEREAS, Licensee wishes to avoid a hearing before the Mississippi State
Board of Medical Licensure and, in lieu thereof, has consented to having the
restrictions placed on his license by the Florida Board Order placed on his license to
practice medicine in the State of Mississippi;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure with
consent of Licensee as signified by his joinder herein, does hereby place Licensee's
Medical License No. 23065 on probation until Licensee has complied with all of the

requirements of the Florida Board Order. Additionally, Licensee shall inform all



hospitals within the State of Mississippi, if any, where he has medical staff privileges
of the actions taken by the Florida Board and the Mississippi State Board of Medical
Licensure.

Licensee shall reimburse the Board for all costs incurred in reiation to the

pending matter pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., §73-25-30. Licensee shall be advised

of the total assessment by separate written notification and shall have a certified
check or money order made payable to the Mississippi State Board of Medical
Licensure, on or before forty (40) days from the date Licensee receives the
aforementioned notification.

This Consent Order shall be subject to approval by the Board. If the Board
fails to approve this Consent Order, in whole or in part, it shall have no force or
effect on the parties. It is further understood and agreed that the purpose of this
Consent Order is to avoid a hearing before the Board. In this regard, Licensee
authorizes the Board to review and examine any documentary evidence or material
concerning the Licensee prior to or in conjunction with its consideration of this
Consent Order. Should this Consent Order not be accepted by the Board, it is
agreed that presentation to and consideration of this Consent Order and other
documents and matters pertaining thereto by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally
prejudice Licensee or the Board or any of its members from participation in any

further proceedings.



Licensee understands and expressly acknowledges that this Consent Order, if
approved and executed by the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, shall
constitute a public record of the State of Mississippi. Licensee further acknowledges
that the Board shall provide a copy of this Order to, among others, the U.S. Drug
Enforcement Administration, and the Board makes no representation as to action, if
any, which other agencies or jurisdictions may take in response to this Order.

Licensee expressly agrees he will not seek an appearance before the Board
as it relates to this matter prior to the completion of the terms of this Order and,
further, agrees the terms and conditions of this Order, once executed, may not be
appealed.

Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §73-25-63(5), this Consent Order shall not be

used against Licensee in any other legal proceedings nor does execution of this
Consent Order constitute any acknowledgment of wrongful misconduct or
malpractice by Licensee.

Recognizing his right to notice of charges specified against him, to have such

charges adjudicated pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., §73-25-27, to be represented

therein by legal counsel of his choice, and to a final decision rendered upon written
findings of fact and conclusions of law, William Scott Campbell, Jr., M.D,,
nonetheless, hereby waives his right to notice and a formal adjudication of charges

and authorizes the Board to enter an Order accepting this Consent Order.



_ /
Executed, this the .2 () , day of VGZK(CA, . 2017.

William Scott Campbel, Jr., M.[DY

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, this the {g“"h day of M% .
2017, by the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure.

@/Mm

Charles D. Miles, M.D.
President

[

Stan Ingram, Esq.
Complaint Counsel

S N .

Counsel for Licénsee




BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF PHYSICIAN'S LICENSE
OF

DEE M. ARCHEVEQUE, M.D.

CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, Dee M. L’Archeveque, M.D., hereinafter referred to as “Licensee,” is
the current holder of License No. 23105, issued February 25, 2014, for the practice of
medicine in the State of Mississippi, said license number expires on June 30, 2017;

WHEREAS, on June 25, 2009, Licensee executed a Consent Order with the New
York State, Department of Heaith, State Board for Professional Medical Conduct
(hereinafter the New York Medical Board) The Consent Order censured and
reprimanded Licensee, fined her five thousand ($5,000) dollars, and placed her on
probation for a period of thirty-six (36) months with specific terms and conditions;

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2016, the Medical Board of California Department of
Consumer Affairs (hereinafter the California Medical Board) revoked Licensee’s
ceriificate to practice in the state of California with the revocation stayed and the
Licensee placed on probation for four (4) years subject to specific terms and conditions;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Subsections (8)(d) and (2) of § 73-25-29, Miss. Code
Ann., the aforementioned actions by the New York Medical Board and the Califomia
Medical Board constitute restrictions placed on her license in another jurisdiction,

grounds for which the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure may revoke the



Mississippi medical license of Licensee, suspend her nght to practice for a time deemed
proper by the Board, place her license on probation, the terms of which may be set by
the Board, or take any other action in relation to her license as the Board may deem
proper under the circumstances;

WHEREAS, Licensee wishes to avoid a hearing before the Mississippi State
Board of Medical Licensure and, in lieu thereof, has consented to certain restrictions on
her license to practice medicine in the State of Mississippi;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure with
consent of Licensee as signified by her joinder herein, does hereby suspend
Licensee’s medical license, number 23105, with said suspension immediately stayed,
with Licensee thereby placed on probation until such time as the States of California
and New York relieve Licensee of the aforementioned Orders, said probation subject to
the following terms and conditions, to-wit:

1. Licensee agrees to comply with all terms delineated in her Califomia and New
York Orders, including, but not limited to, obtaining the requisite CME. Licensee
understands any non-compliance could resuit in further disciplinary action,
including removal of the aforementioned stay of suspension.

2. Licensee shall, upon receipt thereof, immediately provide a copy of any written
reporis or results pursuant to the clinical training program required in her
California Order.

3. During the probationary period, and as required under her California Order,
Licensee shall be prohibited from practicing, performing and/or treating patients

in the area of medical weight loss mariagement.



Recognizing her right to notice of charges specified against her, to have such

charges adjudicated pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., § 73-25-27, to be represented therein

by legal counsel of her choice, and to a final decision rendered upon written findings of
fact and conclusions of law, Dee M. L'Archeveque, M.D., nonetheless, hereby waives
her right to notice and a formal adjudication of charges and authorizes the Board to

enter an order accepting this Consent Order.

Executed, this the \’72' , day of April, 2017.

DEE M. L’ARCHEVEQU

o

—

g,

e _

Dougleh% Esq.
Counsel for Li

2 yainat
ACCEPTED AND APPROVED this the /g ,day o fl, 2017, by the

Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure.
%/ A

CHARLES D. MILES, M.D.
Board President

Stan T. Ingram, Esq.
Board Complaint Counsel



BEFORE THE MISSISSIPP[ STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN’S LICENSE
OF

THOMAS JOSEPH SEGLIO, D.O.

CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, Thomas Joseph Seglio, D.O., hereinafter referred to as “Licensee,”
having an address of 6504 Big Oak, Ocean Springs, Mississippi 39664, is the current
hoider of License No.168356 for the practice of medicine in the State of Mississippi.

WHEREAS, the investigative staff of the Mississippi State Board of Medical
Licensure, hereinafter referred to as "“Board,” has conducted an investigation of
Licensee and has in its possession evidence which, if produced during the course of
an evidentiary hearing, could substantiate that Licensee has violated provisions of the
Board's Administrative Code, Part 2615, Rule 1.6, Supervision (Physician Assistants),
by permitting the physician assistant to practice cutside the Board approved protocol,
and is guilty of not having an approved protocol. In addition, the Beard has evidence in
its possession which could substantiate that Licensee has violated provisions of the
Board's Administrative Code, Part 2640, Chapter 1. Rules Pertaining to Prescribing,
Administering and Dispensing of Medication, Rule 1.5; is guilty of using medications
that do not have Food and Drug Administration approval for use in the treatment of
weight loss; and, further, Licensee has violated provisions in Rule 1.6, and is guilty of

operating an unregistered weight loss clinic.



WHEREAS, such conduct, if established before the Board, constitutes violation of
the Mississippi Medical Practice Act and specifically, Subsections (8)(d) and (13) of the

Miss. Cede Ann., § 73-25-29, and § 73-25-83(a), for which the Board may revcke the

medical license of Licensee, suspend it for a time deemed proper by the Board, or take
any other action as the Board may deem proper under the circumstances;

WHEREAS, Licensee wishes t¢ avoid a hearing before the Board and, in lieu
thereof, has agreed to execute this Consent Order.

NOW THEREFORE, the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, with
consent of Licensee as signified by his joinder herein, does hereby restrict Licensee'’s
certificate to practice medicine in the State of Mississippi, to-wit;

1. Licensee shall be prohibited from serving as a “collaborating/consulting
physician” or a “supervising physician™ as those terms are defined in Parts 2615
and 2630 of the Administrative Code of the Mississippi State Board of Medical
Licensure (July 2018) with all mid-level providers, including but not limited to
physician assistants and advanced practice nurses, and/or students for a period
of three (3) years. Licensee may, however, work with, direct, and instruct such
mid-level providers in the normal course of his practice of medicine.

2. Licensee agrees that, as a Licensee of the Board and business owner, he will be
responsible for the level of care rendered by any physician or mid-tevel provider
in his employ. Any adverse outcomes related to care rendered in clinics owned
by Licensee will result in an appearance before the Board which could result in
disciplinary action. This clause shall be in effect for a period of three (3) years.

3. Licensee is prohibited from practicing bariatric medicine, to include ambulatory
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weight loss, for a period of three (3) years.

. Licensee shall cbey all federal, state and local laws, and all rules, regulations,
and ethics governing the practice of medicine. Any further acts of misconduct will
result in further action.

. That this Consent Order constitutes a reportable action and will be reported to
the National Practitioner Data Bank.

. In the event Licensee fails to comply with any or all of the conditions imposed by
this Consent Order, Licensee's license shall be subject to suspension or any
other disciplinary action by the Board. Further, the Board may, in its scle
discretion, require Licensee to undergo further professional development.

. Licensee shall reimburse the Board for all costs incurred in relation to the

pending matter pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 73-25-30, with said amount not to
exceed $10,000. Licensee shall be advised of the total assessment by separate
notification, and shall tender to the Board a certified check or money order on or
before forty (40) days from the date the assessment is mailed to Licensee via U.
S. mail at his current registered address.

. In the event Licensee should leave Mississippi to reside outside the state,
Licensee shall, within ten (10) days prior to departing, notify the Board in writing
of the dates of departure and return. Periods of residency outside Mississippi will
not apply to the reduction of time restrictions enumerated in this Order, or lessen
the duration of said restrictions. This requirement shall cease once all of the time
restrictions set forth in paragraphs 1, 2, and 3 above have expired.

This Consent Order shall be subject to approval by the Board. If the Board fails
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to approve this Consent Order, in whole or in par, it shall have no force or effect on the
parties. It is further understood and agreed that the purpose of this Consent Crder is to
avoid a hearing before the Board. In this regard, Licensee authorizes the Board to
review and examine any dccumentary evidence or material concerning the Licensee
prior to or in conjunction with its consideration of this Consent Order. Should this
Consent Order not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that presentation to and
consideration of this Consent Qrder and other documents and matters pertaining
thereto by the Board shall not unfairly or iilegally prejudice the Board or any of its
members from participation in any further proceedings. Further, it is not the intent or
purpose of this Order to encourage malpractice liability as a result of Board action.
Therefore, by execution of this Consent Qrder, Licensee is not admitting to or
acknowledging any conduct or act of malpractice.

Licensee understands and expressly acknowledges that this Consent Order shall
constitute a public record of the State of Mississippi. Licensee further understands and
acknowledges that the Board shall provide a copy of this Order to, among others, the
National Practitioners Data Bank and the U. S. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA),
and the Board makes no representation as to actions, if any, which any other agency or
jurisdiction may take in response to this Order.

Recognizing his right to notice of charges specified against him, to have such

charges adjudicated pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., § 73-25-1 et seq., to be represented

therein by legal counsel of his choice, and a final decision hased on written findings of
fact and conclusions of law, Thomas Joseph Seglio, D.O., nonetheless hereby waives

his right to notice and formal adjudication of charges, thereby placing the above
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enurnerated lemms, conditions, and restricions on his licensa to practice medicne in the

State of Mississippi.

EXECUTED, ihis tne/;’_mday of F @&% . 2017.
o Somag fld Il 010

THOMAS JOSEPH SEELIO, D.O,

M
ACCEPTED, this the |3 day oLMaA.t;tﬂOﬁ_

MigsissippiState Board of Medical Licensure

| (e

CHARLES MILES, M.D_, President
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BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN'’S LICENSE
OF

RON YAACOV MARK, M.D.

ORDER REMOVING ALL RESTRICTIONS

(T IS HEREBY ORDERED, that, pursuant to the terms of the Consent Order
dated November 17, 2016, Licensee has provided the requisite proof of the successful
lifting of the Texas Order and Licensee’s Consent Order is now terminated. Licensee
now holds an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the State of Mississippi

effective May 18, 2017.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that, pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., §73-25-27 and

§73-25-32 (1972), a copy of this Order shall be sent by registered mail or personally
served upon Ron Yaacov Mark, M.D.

ORDERED, this the 18" day of May, 2017.

Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure

BY:%(,/%/&:

CHARLES MILES, M.D.
BOARD PRESIDENT




BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN'S LICENSE
OF
RICHARD E. BROWNSTEIN, M.D.

ORDER

THIS MATTER came on regularly for hearing on May 18, 2017, before the
Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, in response to the petition of Richard E.
Brownstein, M.D_ (hereinafter "Licensee"), seeking removal of all restrictions on his license
to practice medicine in the State of Mississippi, imposed by virtue of that certain Consent
Order dated November 17, 2016. In support of Licensee's request for removal of
restrictions, the Board has been submitted proof that Licensee has complied with all terms
of the aforementioned Consent Order. Therefore, the Board, after hearing said request,
finds the same to be well-taken.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that Licensee's request for removal of all restrictions is
hereby granted. Licensee now holds an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the
State of Mississippi.

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED, that pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-27
(1972), a copy of this Order shall be sent by registered mail or personally served upon,
Richard €. Brownstein, M.D.

ORDERED, this the 18" of May, 2017.

MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF
MEDICAL LICENSURE

T e
Pl - =
o A i -
-~ >~ 7
BY: (/%"/lﬁ-fﬁ - jﬂ,//%

Charles B. Miles, M.D.
President



BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN'S LICENSE
OF
SCOTT PRECHTER, M.D.

ORDER

THIS MATTER came on regularly for hearing on May 18, 2017, before the
Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, in response to the petition of Scott Prechter,
M.D. (hereinafter "Licensee"), seeking removal of all restrictions on his license to practice
medicine in the State of Mississippi, imposed by virtue of that certain Consent Order dated
August 18, 2016. In support of Licensee’s request for removal of restrictions, the Board has
been submitted proof that Licensee has complied with all terms of the aforementioned
Cansent Order. Therefore, the Board, after hearing sald request, finds the same to be well-
taken.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that Licensee's request for removal of all restrictions is
hereby granted. Licensee now holds an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the
State of Mississippi.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-27
(1972), a copy of this Order shall be sent by registered mail or personally served upon,
Scott Prechter, M.D.

ORDERED, this the 18" of May, 2017.

MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF
MEDICAL LICENSURE

o>

il '
s r //,-‘) P -~ e
BY: (_%Af'///@ AFT AL
Charles P. Miles, M.D.
President




BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN'S LICENSE
OF

MEISANM H, MOGHBELLI, M. D.

DETERMINATION AND ORDER

THIS MATTER came on regularly for hearing on May 18, 2017, before the
Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure (hereinafter “Board”), pursuant to Title 73,
Chapter 25 of Mississippi Code (1972) Annotated. The Board initiated these
proceedings on March 29, 2017, by issuance of a Summons and Affidavit against
Meisam H. Moghbelli, M.D., (hereinafter “Licensee”) sefting forth five (5) counts of

violation of the Mississippi Medical Practice Act, namely, Counts | |l and V -

unprofessional conduct, which includes, but is not limited to being guilty of any
dishonorable or unethical conduct likely to deceive, defraud or harm the public in

violation of Miss. Code Ann., § 73-25-29(8)(d) and §73-25-83(¢); and Counts I and

IV - submitting a false application for the renewal years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017,

al} in violation of Miss. Code Ann., § 73-25-29(8)(f).

Licensee was present at the May 18, 2017 hearing, represented by Honorable
Doug Mercier. Complaint counsel for the Board was Honorable Stan T. Ingram. Sitting
as legal advisor to the Board was Honorable Ellen O’Neal, Special Assistant Attorney
General. Board members present for all proceedings were Charles D. Miles, M.D.,

Virginia Crawford, M.D., Claude D. Brunson, M.D., S. Randall Easterting, M.D., Charles



K. Lippincott, M.D., William S. Mayo, D.O., William D. McClendon, Jr., M.D., Michelle Y.
Owens, M.D. and Jeanne Ann Rea, M.D.

Based upon the evidence and testimony presented, the Board renders the
following Findings of Fact, Conciusions of Law, and Order;

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Licensee was issued Mississippi Medical License No. 20853 on
November 6, 2009 with said number valid until June 30, 2017.

2. On July 6, 2015, the Board received information via a tetter from the
Hattiesburg Clinic, PA, in reference to the Licensee. The lefter stated that Licensee
was terminated from part-time employment at the Hattiesburg Clinic due fo
Licensee’s use of the automated record keeping system to gain access to and
obtain a patient's personal information without valid medical reason. The
correspondence further stated and the Board confirmed that Licensee gained
access to private healthcare information without the patient's consent in order to
pursue the patient romanticaily. Having conducted an investigation into the matter
and based upon the HIPAA offense discovered pursuant to that investigation, on
March 27, 2015 the Licensee was terminated by both Hattiesburg Clinic and Forrest
General Hospital.

3. In review of Licensee's renewal applications for the years 2015-2016
and 2016-2017, Licensee indicated, in response to Question No. 1, a negative

response. The question asks the following:
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"

..., have you been the subject of any disciplinary action or
investigation by any licensing authority, hospital, institution, society, or
other government agency?”

4, Licensee’s response constitutes a violation of the Board's
Administrative Code and State Law in that Licensee knew, or should have known, at
the time Licensee renewed his license, of the aforementioned investigation by
Hattiesburg Clinic and Forrest General Hospital and subseqguent termination.

CONCILUSIONS OF LAW

Based upon the foregoing, the Board concludes that Licensee is guilty of Counts [, 11, Il
IV and 11l of the March 29, 2017 Affidavit of Leslie Ross, and that the Board is therefore

authorized by Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-29 to suspend, revoke or restrict

Licensee’s license to practice medicine in Mississippi.
ORDER

IT 1S THEREFORE, ORDERED that based upon the Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law enumerated above, Licensee shall attend PBI, Inc. courses in the
areas of ethics, boundaries, record keeping and HIPAA. Licensee’s failure to complete
the above courses within a period of one (1) year will result in further disciplinary action
up to and including suspension of license.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Licensee shall reimburse the Board for all costs

incurred in refation to this matter pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-30, with

said amount not to exceed $10,000. Licensee shall be advised of the total assessment

by separate notification, and shall tender to the Board a certified check or money order

Page 3 of 4



on or befare forty {(40) days from the date the assessment is mailed to Licensee via U.S.
mail at the address shown on file at the Board.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-27,

a copy of this Determination and Order shall be sent by registered mail or personally
served upon Licensee or his counsel.
SO ORDERED, this the 18th day of May, 2017.

MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF
MEDICAL LICENSURE

BY: (t/ /ﬁzﬁ/ﬂb

CHARLES MILES‘ M.D., PRESIDENT

Page 4 of 4



BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF PHYSICIAN LICENSE

OF

LON FREDERICK ALEXANDER, M.D.

CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, LON FREDERICK ALEXANDER, M.D., hereinafter referred to as
"Licensee," is the current holder of Mississippi Medical License No. 10954, issued February 13,
1986, reinstated from previous disciplinary action on January 20, 2015, and said license is
current until June 30, 2017,

WHEREAS, the Investigative Staff of the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure,
hereinafter referred to as the "Board," has in its possession evidence which the Board contends
that if produced during the course of an evidentiary hearing, would substantiate that Licensee has
violated provisions of the Board's Administrative Code due to noncompliance with the Financial
Responsibility terms of his 2014 Recovery Contract Agreement (RCA) by failing to timely pay
an invoice for a March 2016 UMMC toxicology laboratory analysis in the amount of $178.00
(“the violation™);

WHEREAS Licensee contends that, to the extent such evidence or facts substantiate
non-compliance, such non-compliance, if any, was non-intentional or caused in whole or in part
by billing or invoicing irregularities occasioned by a third-party provider;

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to fulfill all terms and conditions of his Recovery Contract
Agreement, maintain his license, and avoid the prospect of license suspension or license
revocation, and;

WHEREAS the Board and Licensee recognize that should this matter proceed to hearing



record of the State of Mississippi. Licensee further acknowledges that the Board shall provide a
copy of this Order to, among others, the U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration, and the Board
makes no representation as to action, if any, which any other agency or jurisdiction may take in
response to this Order.

Recognizing his right to notice of charges specified against him, to have such charges
adjudicated pursuant to Miss. Code Ann., §73-25-27 ([972), to be represented therein by legal
counsel of his choice, and to a final decision rendered upon written findings of fact and
conclusions law, LON FREDFRICK ALEXANDER, M.D., nevertheless, hereby waives his right
to notice and a formal adjudication of charges and authorizes the Board to enter an order
accepting this Consent Order.
dayof __ JU . 2017

LON FREDERICK ALEXANDER, M.D.

Executed, this the | 9

Appr as to Form:

BBB/ﬁf ALLAS,ESQ.

Counsel for Licensee

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, this the Z‘ﬁIE day of %A > , 2017,
e
by the Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure.

(Zoif Ltzn,

CHARLES D. MILES, M.D.
Board President




BEFORE THE MISSISSIPP| STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN’'S LICENSE
OF

LAWRENCE EDSEL STEWART, M.D.

DETERMINATION AND ORDER

THIS MATTER came on regularly for hearing on May 18, 2017, before the
Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure (hereinafter “Board”), pussuant to Title 73,
Chapter 25 of Mississippi Code (1972) Annotated. The Board initiated these
proceedings on April 3, 2017, by issuance of a Summons and Affidavit against
Lawrence Edsel Stewart, M.D., (hereinafter Licensee) setting forth three (3) counts of
violation of the Mississippi Medical Practice Act, namely, Count | - having been
convicted of violating a federal or state law regulating the distribution of a narcotic drug
by virtue of entering a guilty plea in Federal Court for knowingly and intentionally
distributing and dispensing a controlled substance outside the scope of professional

practice, in violation of Miss. Code Ann., §73-25-29(4), Count Il - guifty of prescribing a

drug having addiction forming or addiction sustaining liability otherwise than in the
course of legitimate professional practice by virtue of issuing a controlled substance

with no legitimate justification, in violation of Miss. Code Ann., §73-25-25(3); and Count

ll - is guilty of unprofessionat conduct, including any dishonorable or unethical conduct

likely to deceive, defraud or harm the public, in violation of Miss. Code Ann., §73-25-

29(8)(d).



Licensee was present at the May 18, 2017, hearing, represented by Honorable
Doug Mercies. Complaint counsel for the Board was Honorable Stan T. ingram. Sitting
as legal advisor to the Board was Honorable Ellen O'Neal, Special Assistant Attorney
General. Board members present for all proceedings were Charles D. Miles, M.D.,
Virginia Crawford, M.D., Claude D. Brunson, M.D., S. Randall Easterling, M.D., Charles
K. Lippincott, M.D., William S. Mayo, D.O., Willlam D. McClendon, Jr.,, M.D., Michelle Y.
Owens, M.D. and Jeanne Ann Rea, M.D.

Based upon the evidence and testimony presented, the Board renders the
following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Licensee is a physician licensed to practice medicine in the State of
Mississippi, currently holding License No. 11503.

2. On December 9, 2015, Licensee was served an Order To Show Cause
And Immediate Suspension of Registration (Certificate No. AS2286311) by Agents of
the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), as Licensee's continued registration
constituted an imminent danger to the public health and safety. Licensee perfected an
appeal and an Order To Show Cause hearing was held on March 22-23, 2016. The
Administrative Law Judge found that Licensee’s registration was inconsistent with the
public interest and recommended that Licensee’s DEA Certificate be revoked and that
any applications for renewal or modification be denied. Said ruling was then upheld by
the DEA Administrator.

3. On July 13, 2016, Licensee entered a guilty plea in the United States

District Court For the Southern District of Mississippi Western division to a single count
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(Count 12) of a 27 Count Federal Indictment. Specifically, Licensee pled guilty to
knowingly and intentionally distributing and dispensing a controlled substance outside
the scope of professional practice in violation of Section 841(a)(1), Title 21, United
States Code, and Section 2, Title 18, United States Code. As a result of said plea,
Licensee was sentenced to two (2) years of probation and was ordered to immediately
pay a $5,000 fine.

4. Evidence was presented at the hearing demonstrating, and the Board
hereby finds by clear and convincing evidence, that Licensee pled guilty to one felony
federal charge of drug distribution and that ail remaining 26 counts of the federal
indictment were dropped; that Licensee has not been practicing since July 1, 2016; and
that Licensee currently does not hiave a DEA Uniform Control Substance Registration
Certificate, having surrendered the same.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Based upon the foregoing, the Board conciudes that Licensee is guilty of Counts
I, il and 1, as set forth in the April 3, 2017 Affidavit of Leslie Ross, and that the Board is

therefore authorized by Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-29 to suspend, revoke or restrict

Licensee’s license to practice medicine in Mississippi.
ORDER
IT IS THEREFORE, ORDERED that based upon the Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law enumerated above, Licensee's license to practice medicine in the
State of Mississippi is hereby suspended. However, said suspension is hereby stayed

provided Licensee complies with the following requirements:
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(1) Licensee shall take courses in ethics, boundaries and prescribing as
offered and administered by PBI. Inc. Licensee shall have a period of one
(1) year to complete the above referenced courses.

(2) Licensee shall maintain at all times full and complete advocacy with the
Mississippi Professional Health Program (MPHP) and comply with any
and all requirements maintained by the MPHP for life.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Licensee shall reimburse the Board for all costs

incurred in relation to this matter pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-30, with

said amount not to exceed $10,000. Licensee shall be advised of the total assessment
by separate notification, and shall tender to the Board a certified check or money order
on or before forty (40) days from the date the assessment is mailed to Licensee via U.S.
mail at the address shown on file at the Board.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 73-25-27,

a copy of this Determination and Order shall be sent by registered mail or personaily
served upon Licensee or his counsel.
SO ORDERED, this the 18th day of May, 2017,

MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF
MEDICAL LICENSURE

7
/:;/ _5_15?:-4 - > -
BY, (e s K Fr

CHARLES MILES, M.D., PRESIDENT
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BEFORE THE MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL LICENSURE
IN THE MATTER OF THE PHYSICIAN’S LICENSE
OfF
THOMAS E. STURDAVANT, M.D.

ORDER OF CONTINUANCE

THIS MATTER came on regularly for hearing on May 18, 2017, before the
Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure, in response to a request for continuance
of the hearing set for this date by Thomas E. Sturdavant, M.D. (hereinafter "Licensee")
through his attorney, William E. Whitfield, 1ll. After consideration of the matter, the
Board finds Licensee’s motion to be well taken.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED, that this matter is continued until July 21, 2017.

ORDERED, this the 18th day of May, 2017.

MISSISSIPPI STATE BOARD OF
MEDICAL LICENSURE

BY: {;_
Charles D. Miles, M.D.
President






